
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Friday, 6 December 2019. 
 01476 406080

Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Monday, 16 December 2019 at 10.30 am
Witham Room - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Linda Wootten (Chairman)
Councillor Mike Exton (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Breda Griffin, Councillor 
Anna Kelly and Councillor Mark Whittington

Agenda
1.  Membership

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2.  Apologies

3.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 9th September 2019 (Pages 3 - 8)

5.  Constitution Review Project Plan
Report from the Chairman of the Constitution Committee.

(Pages 9 - 15)

6.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent

Constitution 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes
Constitution Committee
Monday, 9 September 2019

Committee members present

Councillor David Bellamy
Councillor Mike Exton (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Paul Fellows
Councillor Breda Griffin

Councillor Anna Kelly
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Councillor Linda Wootten (Chairman)

Officers Other Members

Intertim Chief Executive (Paul Thomas)
Interim Head of Legal and Monitoring 
Officer (Shahin Ishmail)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)

Councillor Chris Benn
Councillor Ray Wootten 

8. Disclosure of interests

None disclosed.

9. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2019

The notes from the meeting held on 10 June 2019 were agreed subject to the 
typographical error on page 5 paragraph 3, third line from the bottom up “do” to read 
“to”.

10. Companies Committee - Governance Arrangements

Before the report was discussed, reference was made to the lateness of the report.  
Although the papers had been sent by post, Members had not received the report and 
not everyone looked at their IT equipment over the weekend, agendas and reports 
should be sent out together not separately.  The Deputy Leader of the Council did 
apologise for the late distribution of the report and the Interim Chief Executive said that 
he would look into the distribution of papers going forward.

3

Agenda Item 4



The Monitoring Officer then presented a report which updated the Committee on the 
revised terms of reference for the Companies Committee. Members had received a 
detailed report at their June meeting on the establishment of the Companies Committee 
and had discussed the issue at the meeting.  Following the meeting the Chairman had 
requested that the terms of reference be revisited following a wider discussion with 
Members and Officers.  The principles of the Companies Committee, aims and 
objectives remained the same.  The terms of reference had been changed to clarify the 
strategic nature of the Committee.   

Points 1 and 2 of the terms of reference related to new companies and enabled the 
Companies Committee to provide pre-formation scrutiny of any proposed new company 
before a recommendation was made to Cabinet, any recommendation being based on 
evidence that the Committee had looked at. 

Point 2 of the terms of reference was to approve the strategic business plans of any 
new company/joint venture together with any substantive changes to those plans.  

In relation to Point 3 the Companies Committee would have an oversight on an annual 
basis of the strategic business plans of the companies that already existed, notably 
Gravitas, EnvironmentSK and InvestSK.   The operational and day to day running of the 
company was for the company board to discuss, the key distinction was the strategic 
oversight that the Companies Committee provided, with the aim to increase 
transparency and accountability.   

Point 4 dealt with strategic performance and the Companies Committee would receive 
reports and evaluate the strategic performance of the Companies, this would include 
financial performance against the Strategic Business Plans for example whether value 
for money was being received.  

Point 5 of the terms of reference dealt with the Companies Committee scrutiny role in 
relation to its oversight of the companies, making recommendations to the Cabinet in 
relation to having the appropriate skills and expertise at Board level, strategic objectives 
of the companies and the strategic direction of the companies.  

Point 6 approved the appointment of company directors, however this was subject to 
the Articles of Association of the company concerned.  The removal of company 
directors could be for any number of reasons and what was contained within the Articles 
of the company concerned and would be looked at on a case by case basis.
The main changes to the terms of reference related to clarity and transparency.  
Training was currently being arranged for a date in October and it was proposed that 
this would be mandatory for all members on the Companies Committee.  The training 
would be bespoke and there would be no cost to the Council.  It was suggested that 
Members of the Constitution Committee and Directors of the Companies should also be 
invited to the training.

The number of meetings were discussed and following a brief discussion it was agreed 
that this should be increased to four quarterly meetings. It was acknowledged that more 
meetings could be called if necessary.  Training was then discussed and Members felt 

4



that training needed to be mandatory for all Cabinet Members as well as directors of the 
Companies and Members of the Companies Committee.  A questions was asked about 
substitutes on the Companies Committee and it was stated that the Committee was 
politically balanced and substitutes were allowed provided that they had received the 
training, but no Cabinet Members could be substitutes.

Further discussion on training generally followed and reference was made to the 
scrutiny training taking place on 18 September, a further date was also being arranged 
for those Members who could not attend the September date.

One Member questioned what powers of intervention were available, and how any 
“disapproval” happened.  The Monitoring Officer indicated that these were implicit within 
the terms of reference.  Any approvals/recommendations would be made on the 
evidence before the Committee as with the other Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
the Companies Committee could only make recommendations to Cabinet they had no 
more decision making powers than the other Overview and Scrutiny Committees.   
Concern was still expressed about members of the companies whose legal obligations 
were first to the company not the Council.  The Companies Committee strengthened the 
governance arrangements as they looked at all the companies’ activity in an oversight 
role and recommendations would be made based on the evidence before them.

A question was asked about how a Member not on a Committee could ask a question 
about a company.  It was stated that individual Councillors would not have the legal 
ability to ask a question of a company’s board, however they could approach the 
relevant Cabinet Member or Strategic Director responsible for that specific company.  

A short discussion then followed about asking questions generally and having a clear 
procedure for Councillors to follow.  It was agreed that this was an issue to take on 
board as part of the constitution review so that everyone was clear of the process both 
inside the Council and outside.

 Action Note

That as part of the Constitution Review the procedure for asking a question 
relating to company activity is made clear.

The Monitoring Officer highlighted that a change had been made in relation to the 
appointment of the Chairman of the Companies Committee which was different to the 
other Committees should the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Committee resign.  The 
appointment of a new Chairman or Vice-Chairman would be made at the next Council 
meeting.  Members agreed with this proposal although they felt that the wording at (iv) 
needed to be changed to 

(iv) if the Chairman is absent, the Vice-Chairman shall preside.  If the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman are absent, the Committee shall elect one of the members present as 
Chairman of the that meeting.

5



The Chairman thanked Members for the debate and asked if they were happy with the 
proposed recommendations to include the increase of meetings to four per year. That 
mandatory training is undertaken by members of the Companies Committee including 
all Cabinet Members and Directors as well as all substitute members to the Companies 
Committee. That the amendment is made in relation to (iv). This was agreed and on 
being put to the vote unanimously agreed.

Recommendation:

That the Constitution Committee approves the revised terms of reference for 
Companies Committee as set out below subject to the amendment re the 
Chairman/Vice-Chairman.

That the Constitution Committee approves a training day for members of the 
Companies Committee as mandatory to be attended by all Cabinet Members and 
Directors as well as any other interested Member of the Council including all 
Members of the Constitution Committee.  

That there are at least four scheduled meetings of the Companies Committee per 
year.

That training for the Companies Committee is mandatory for all members of the 
Committee, all Cabinet Members and Directors of the Companies including 
substitutes.

Revised Terms of Reference 

The Companies Committee

The Council will establish and maintain a Companies Committee to act in accordance 
with these terms of reference in relation to any stand-alone company or joint venture 
partnership or other such collaborative arrangement, whether wholly or jointly owned by 
the Council. 

The Committee’s primary purpose will be to provide oversight of company or other 
venture business planning processes to ensure alignment with the Council’s 
overarching strategy whilst recognising the operational independence of the 
company/venture.

The Committee will also provide the scrutiny function for investments, outcomes against 
funding, property disposals and other resourcing decisions made in relation to 
companies.

Membership

The Committee will be composed of 7 Members and will comply with the Political 
Balance Rules in Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

6



Membership will be drawn from members who do not also sit as Company Directors or 
on Cabinet.

Meetings of the Committee
Meetings will take place at least four times per annum.
(ii) Additional meetings will be arranged as required to consider exceptional items.

(iii)Appropriate representatives of the companies / venture will be included as required 
by the content of the agenda.

Chairman and Vice-Chairman

(i) At the Annual Meeting the Council shall appoint the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Companies Committee.

(ii) If the Chairman or Vice-Chairman resigns by giving written notice of resignation to 
the Chief Executive, the appointment of a new Chairman will be made by Council at its 
next available meeting. 

(iii) The Chairman, if present, shall preside.

(iv) If the Chairman is absent, the Vice-Chairman shall preside. If the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman are absent, the Committee shall elect
one of the members present as Chairman of that meeting.

Powers of Chairman and Vice-Chairman

(i) The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of a Committee (acting together as a
Sub-committee) are authorised to give decisions on any matter of 

(a) a routine or straight-forward nature
(b) Which the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, after consultation with the Chief 

Executive or relevant Strategic Director most directly concerned, are satisfied 
should be dealt with as a matter of urgency. 

Any decision taken under paragraph (i) above shall be reported by the officer
concerned to the next meeting of the Committee.

(ii) No decision shall be taken under paragraph (i) which would constitute a
departure from a settled strategy, policy or programme of the Council, nor
outside the powers of the Committee.

Terms of Reference
Terms of Reference of the Companies’ Committee are to:

1. Consider proposals on the creation of any new company or joint 
venture, and make recommendations to Cabinet as to the need, 

7



desirability and business objectives of the new entity prior to its 
creation; 

2. Approve and monitor Strategic Business Plans of any new 
company/ joint venture together with any substantive changes to 
those plans;

3. Have oversight on an annual basis of the Strategic Business Plans 
of existing companies/ joint ventures and to consider any 
substantive changes to those plans;

4. Receive reports and evaluate strategic performance, including 
financial performance, against Strategic Business Plans; 

5. Make recommendations to the Cabinet on:

- Appropriate skills and expertise at Board level;
- The  strategic objectives;
- The strategic direction.

6. Approve the appointment of company directors, subject to the 
Articles of Association of the company concerned.

 

11. Constitution Review

The Monitoring Officer referred to the last meeting of the Committee when they had 
agreed the way forward in relation to the Constitution Review.  Due to the recent 
changes at both Officer and Leadership level work had been pushed back.  She 
informed the meeting that a Scrutiny Officer had been appointed and that interviews had 
been scheduled for the Head of Governance who would head Democratic Services.  

The Deputy Leader stated that the Constitution, in his view, needed to be much more 
accessible, the current document was dated and contradicted itself. He was happy that 
a review was taking place and he felt that the review should take as long as necessary.  
He gave the example of how questions were asked which had been raised earlier and 
how this was not clear within the Constitution, with rules different for Members and the 
public. The document needed to be modernised.

It was suggested that a timetable and workshop plan be submitted to the next meeting.  
A model constitution from the LGA should be looked at and how this can be related to 
the Council’s requirements.  The proposed constitution would be in a modular version.  
A hard copy of the current document had been circulated to Members of the 
Constitution Committee.  

12. Close of meeting

The meeting closed at 11:15am.

8



Constitution Committee
16 December 2019

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten

Chair of Constitution Committee

        

Constitution Review - Project Plan

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Head of Governance 

x6152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer 6 December 2019

Approved by: Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive 6 December 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Chair of Constitution 
Committee 6 December 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. Approves the framework for the Constitution Review as set out in appendices 1 
and 2.

2. Establishes a Constitution Working Group comprising all members of the 
Constitution Committee, the Monitoring Officer and Head of Governance.

3. Holds its first Working Group meeting immediately after the Committee meeting on 
16 December. 

4. Receives regular updates on progress against the work plan.

9

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 At the last meeting of the Constitution Committee, it was agreed that the Committee would 

receive at its next meeting a timetable, work plan and proposals for a working group for 
the Constitution Review (minute 11 refers).

1.2 This report sets out the preparatory work done to date and to present to the Committee a 
proposed plan for the review.

 

2 Proposals for the Constitution Review
2.1 It is proposed that a Constitution Working Group is established, comprising all the 

members of the Constitution Committee, the Monitoring Officer and Head of Governance. 
It is also proposed that each member of the group will champion a particular aspect of the 
review. The Working Group will be able to call on Cabinet members, scrutiny members, 
opposition members and officers to input throughout the process as is required. 

2.2 Appendix 1 to the report sets out the broad headings under which the Constitution will be 
set out, which is aimed to ensure clarity, use of plain English and having a logical flow of 
information. This is not set in stone and the Committee may wish to iterate it as the review 
progresses. 

2.3 Appendix 2 sets out the proposed timeline for the various aspects of the review. The 
proposed methodology would be as follows:

Chapter 1: this requires a reasonably quick review (3 weeks are allocated) to set the tone 
and purpose of the constitution, namely to ensure good decision making, with clear 
parameters as to who the decision maker is and what the limits of the delegation are. 
Chapter 1 should also set out the ambition of openness and accountability.

Chapter 2: this chapter will look at the principles of decision-making and the definitions of 
different types of decision. It will also set out the terms of reference for each of the 
Council’s committees

Chapter 3: this will look at officer and member level decision making; bringing greater 
clarity to the limits of delegations and will require updating of officer job titles and other 
minor amendments for officer delegated decisions. It is proposed that the Head of 
Governance leads a series of officer level groups, calling on Heads of Service to look at 
the detail of officer delegations. This chapter is likely to involve a considerable amount of 
time and has been allocated 3 months, with a round up session with the Working Group in 
w/c 4 February. For member level decision making (Cabinet, Portfolio Holders, Council) it 
is proposed that the Chair and Vice Chair lead a series of workshops with members in the 
7-week period and again culminating in a Working Group session in w/c 4 February.

Chapter 4: Procedure rules: this has been allocated 4 months, starting with a workshop 
session immediately after the meeting of 16 December. As there are not currently specific 
procedure rules for individual Committees, all aspects related to their management default 
to the Council Procedure Rules. These are often not conducive to the needs and functions 
of the different committees, so to ensure the Constitution is fit for purpose and business 
can be transacted as effectively as possible, it is proposed that we introduce terms of 
reference for individual committees that reflect their role in the decision-making process. 

10



Chapter 5: This will bring together organisational procedure rules. There may be some 
areas where Members identify the need for additional procedure rules. These can be 
identified in an early session and the following months will be used to develop those new 
protocols. Some of the documents that are produced may need to go through different 
aspects of the Council’s decision-making processes, so approximately 5-months has been 
allowed for this piece of work. Any new procedure rules will be added to existing 
procedure rules.

Chapter 6: As with corporate procedure rules, Members may feel that there is a need to 
develop new protocols to complement those that already exist. The Scrutiny Officer is 
looking to lead the development of a Scrutiny/Cabinet Protocol. It has also been a long 
time since the Planning Code of Good Practice was last updated. Again, it is likely that any 
new or revised protocols will need to go through the Council’s decision-making process.

Chapter 7: The management structure will be added when the document is compiled

Chapter 8: this chapter will incorporate the current Members’ allowance scheme. It would 
also be helpful to set out the requirements for members around making travel claims

Chapter 9: This chapter will form a repository of associated documents, including the 
financial regulations

Chapter 10: This chapter will form a repository of templates, including report templates, 
member decision templates, plan templates and interest form templates. 

3 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
3.1 The Constitution has not been reviewed for a number of years. This review has been 

commissioned to ensure that the Constitution is fit for purpose, provides clarity and helps 
ensure robust governance and efficient decision-making.

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
4.1 Consultation with Members will happen throughout the revision process through a series 

of informal workshops and formal meetings of the Constitution Committee.

5 Financial Implications 
5.1 There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report; the review will be 

carried out within existing resources.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Gillian Goddard, Senior Financial Accountant

6 Legal and Governance Implications 
6.1 The review of the Constitution will aid good governance by becoming clearer in terms of 

decision making, being easier to read and understand and being brought up to date with 
changes in management and leadership structures. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if required) N/A
Previously Considered by: Constitution 
Committee

9 September 2019
Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  16 December 2019

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix  1

Project Plan Resp From To
Month Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Month 8 Month 9 Comments

Week Commencing 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 12 22 29 6 13 20 27 wk1 wk2 wk3 wk4 wk1 wk2 wk3 wk4
1.0 Workstream

Ch 1: Introduction, summary and explanation
Ch 2: Making decisions
Ch 3: Responsibilities
Ch 4: Procedure Rules
Ch 5: Organisational Procedure Rules
Ch 6: Codes and Protocols
Ch 7: Management Structure
Ch 8: Members' allowance scheme
Ch 9: Associated documents
Ch 10: Templates

2.0 Committee review
Ch 1: Introduction, summary and explanation
Ch 2: Making decisions
Ch 3: Responsibilities
Ch 4: Procedure Rules
Ch 5: Organisational Procedure Rules
Ch 6: Codes and Protocols
Ch 7: Management Structure
Ch 8: Members' allowance scheme
Ch 9: Associated documents
Ch 10: Templates

3.0 Governance
Constitution Committee
Constitution Committee
Constitution Committee
Council

13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Chapter Overview
Chapter 1 Introduction, summary and explanation About the Constitution

The role of members of the Council
The role of the public – opportunities for public participation
Review and revision of the constitution
Suspension, interpretation and publication of the Constitution

Chapter 2 Making decisions Principles of decision-making
Budget and Policy Framework
Local Choice functions
Access to information
Terms of reference for the Council’s committees

Chapter 3 Responsibilities Scheme of delegation
Chapter 4 Procedure Rules Procedure rules for Council and each committee
Chapter 5 Organisational Procedure Rules Finance Procedure Rules

Contract Procedure Rules
Employment Procedure Rules
Substitute Procedure Rules – needs to be developed

Chapter 6 Codes and Protocols Scrutiny / Cabinet Protocol – needs to be developed
Planning Code of Good Practice – needs to be updated / developed
Members’ Code of Conduct
Officer Code of Conduct
Member/Officer Protocol
Whistleblowing
Petition Scheme – possibly needs to be reviewed

Chapter 7 Management Structure
Chapter 8 Members’ allowance scheme The scheme itself

Requirements around making travel claims – information required when submitting, 
timeliness, etc.

Chapter 9 Associated documents Financial regs, etc.
Chapter 10 Templates Report templates

Decision notice templates

15



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 9th September 2019
	5 Constitution Review Project Plan
	Project Plan v1
	Chapters


